
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Thursday, 9 February 2023. 

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Licensing 
Committee  

     
 

 

Friday, 17 February 2023 at 11.30 am 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House,  

St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Pam Bosworth (Chairman) 
Councillor Dean Ward (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Harrish Bisnauthsing, Councillor Robert Broughton, Councillor George 
Chivers, Councillor Phil Dilks, Councillor Paul Fellows, Councillor Breda-Rae Griffin, 
Councillor Jane Kingman, Councillor Nikki Manterfield and Councillor Paul Wood 
 

Agenda 
 

1.   Apologies for absence 
 

 

2.   Disclosure of interests 
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting. 
 

 

3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 21 October 2022 
 

(Pages 3 - 7) 

4.   Exclusion of Press and Public 
It is anticipated that, in accordance with Section 100A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 (as amended) the press and public may be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of the following item of business because of 
the likelihood that otherwise exempt information, as described in 
paragraphs 1 and 2 of the Act (as amended) would be disclosed to them. 
 

 

5.   Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976: Committee 
to determine whether applicant is a fit and proper person to be a 
licensed Private Hire driver 
Report ENV838 from the Licensing Officer. 
 

(Pages 9 - 39) 

6.   Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent. 
 

 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Minutes 
Licensing Committee 
Friday, 21 October 2022 

  
 
 

 
Committee members present 
  
Councillor George Chivers 
Councillor Helen Crawford 
Councillor Breda-Rae Griffin 
Councillor Ms Jane Kingman 
Councillor Philip Knowles 
Councillor Nikki Manterfield 
Councillor Harrish Bisnauthsing 
 
Officers  
 
Licensing Officer (Chris Clarke, Elizabeth Reeve) 
Legal Advisor (Mandy Braithwaite) 
Democratic Officer (Lucy Bonshor) 
 

 
 
19. Election of a Chairman 
 
In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, as both the Chairman and the Vice-
Chairman of the Licensing Committee had given their apologies for the meeting, the 
Members of the Committee present, proposed, seconded and agreed that Councillor 
Helen Crawford be elected as Chairman of the Committee for this meeting only. 
 
Councillor Crawford in the Chair. 
 
20. Apologies for absence 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Bosworth, Broughton, Dilks and 
Ward. 
 
Councillor Bisnauthsing was substituting for Councillor Fellows. 
 
21. Disclosure of interests 
 
None disclosed. 
 

3

Agenda Item 3



 

22. Minutes of the meeting held on 21 September 2022 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 21 September 2022 were proposed, seconded and 
AGREED. 
 
23. Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 
It was proposed, seconded and AGREED to exclude the press and public in 
accordance with Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) 
during consideration of the following item of business because of the likelihood that 
otherwise exempt information, as described in paragraphs 1 and 2 of the Act would be 
disclosed to them.  
 
24. Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982: Determination as 

to whether a Hackney Carriage Driver remains a fit and proper person to 
hold a licence 

 
Decision 
 
To revoke the Hackney Carriage driver’s licence on the grounds that the driver is 
not a fit and proper person to hold such a licence under Section 61 (1)(b) of the 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. 
 
The Legal Advisor introduced those present and confirmed that the applicant was in 
attendance together with their representative. 
 
The Licensing Officer presented report ENV828 which concerned whether a Hackney 
Carriage driver remained a fit and proper person to hold a hackney carriage driver’s 
licence. 
 
The driver had held a hackney carriage drivers’ licence with the authority since March 
2016.  Since that time the authority had received four complaints about the driver’s 
behaviour and his driving.  Members were referred to Appendix 1.   
 
The driver’s hackney carriage plate had expired on 4 August and although an 
application for a new plate had been made before the expiry of the old plate (20 July 
2022), it was not picked up. The driver was seen with no roof light and an expired 
hackney carriage plate on 11 August 2022.  On 16 August 2022 the taxi firm where the 
driver worked was visited by Licensing Officers and it was confirmed that the driver had 
completed 145 jobs during the period where he displayed an expired hackney carriage 
plate on his vehicle (5 – 16 August 2022).  The driver collected the new hackney 
carriage plate on 17 August and was questioned by Licensing Officers about the expired 
plate, dashcam footage and no roof light.  The driver was issued with a total of eight 
penalty points for failure to use a roof light and driving with an expired vehicle plate. 
 
A question was asked about notification in respect of the availability of the plate to 
which the Licensing Officer replied. 
 

4



 

The driver’s representative then presented the driver’s case to the Committee and 
confirmed that the content of the appendices was correct and the driver had felt that the 
issued penalty points was the punishment for neglecting to pick up the new plate.  
Mitigating circumstances were given in respect of why the plate had not been collected.   
 
It was requested that that the dashcam footage was shown to the Committee and the 
driver was questioned about the footage shown and his driving abilities and the safety of 
the public to which the driver responded.  Further questions were asked by the 
Committee about the drivers conduct and driving and the other instances outlined within 
the report and the reasons for his behaviour to which the driver replied. 
 
The Licensing Officer then gave his closing statement and reminded Members that each 
application needed to be determined on its own merits.  Members needed to consider 
the report and appendices before them and the representations made and decide 
whether to: 
 

a) Suspend the driver for a defined period of time. 
b) Revoke the Hackney Carriage driver’s licence on the grounds that the applicant 

is not a fit and proper person to hold such a licence under Section 61 (1)(b) of the 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. 

c) Issue a warning. 
d) Take no action. 

 
The driver’s representative then gave his closing statement and referred to the stressful 
time that the driver had recently gone through and that he was a responsible citizen who 
took great care and pride in his work and he asked the Committee not revoke his 
hackney carriage driver’s licence. 
 
(12:00 the Licensing Officers, driver and representative left the meeting) 
 
The Committee considered the driver before them having regard to the report, 
appendices, the representations made, the dashcam footage, legislation, the Council’s 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy, Statutory Taxi and Private Hire 
vehicle standards and the Councillors Handbook.   
 
Members were very concerned about the driver’s road usage, speeding and the safety 
of the public when riding with the driver and the fact that he had failed to tell the truth 
when questioned by the Licensing Officer.  Public safety was paramount and although 
Members acknowledged the mitigating circumstances put forward by the driver they 
were still very concerned about his behaviour and driving aptitude from the complaints 
that had been received and the dashcam footage shown.    It was therefore, proposed, 
seconded and unanimously agreed to revoke the driver’s hackney carriage driver’s 
licence.  
 
(12:11 the Licensing Officers, driver and representative returned to the meeting) 
 
The Legal Advisor read out the Committee’s decision. 
 

5



 

The committee had taken into consideration the report, appendices, representations 
made at the meeting, dashcam footage, legislation, the Council’s Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Licensing Policy, Statutory taxi and private hire vehicle standards and the 
Councillors Handbook. 
 
The Committee’s decision was to: 

 
Revoke the Hackney Carriage driver’s licence on the grounds that they are not a fit and 
proper person to hold such a licence under section 61 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. 

 
The Committee’s reasons for the decision was that Public safety was paramount and 
the overriding objective in the licensing of drivers is safety of the travelling public.  The 
Council’s Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy provides a base line for 
consideration of conduct on whether a person is and remains a fit and proper person to 
hold a licence. 
 
Matters which had occurred were set out in in the report some of which the committee 
regarded as minor and others, extremely serious matters of concern which 
demonstrated that the driver did not take his professional responsibilities seriously and 
therefore was not a safe and suitable person to retain a licence.  Such behaviour and 
conduct were considered by the Committee as putting the public at risk.   
 
The Committee had applied a stepped and proportionate approach and had regard to 
the representations made. 
 
In relation to “fit and proper” the statutory guidance states  

Without any prejudice, and based on the information before you, would you allow a person for 

whom you care, regardless of their condition, to travel alone in a vehicle driven by this person at any 

time of day or night? 

The Committee had judged whether the driver was fit and proper by this standard. 

Overall, and bearing in mind the requirement that had been applied by the policy as to a 
fit and proper person, the Committee noted and had particular regard to the fact that the 
policy itself required a person to be fit and proper and remain a fit and proper person to 
hold a licence at all times. The Committee was satisfied there had not been the 
consistent and ingrained compliance and approach towards all requirements placed on 
him as a driver. 

 
The driver was informed that he had 21 days to appeal to the Magistrates Court.  If the 
driver appealed to the Magistrates Court and the Magistrates agreed with the Council’s 
decision, the Council may apply to the Magistrates for an order to pay the Council’s 
legal costs of the appeal.  The Magistrates had a discretion as to whether they make 
such an order.  

6



 

   
25. Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special 

circumstances, decides is urgent. 
 
The Committee were notified that at the present time there was no business for the 
Committee to determine at the meeting scheduled for Friday 11 November 2022 and it 
was very likely that the meeting would be cancelled. 
 
26. Close of meeting 
 
The meeting closed at 12:14. 
 
 

7



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

9

Agenda Item 5
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

13

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 21 October 2022
	5 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1976:Committee to determine whether applicant is a fit and proper person to be a licensed Private Hire driver
	ENV838 Appendix 1 and 2


